
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Monday 14 March 2022 
 

Licensing Panel 
 

Tuesday 22 March 2022, 10.00 am 
 

Council Chamber, Allerdale House 
 

Membership: 
  
  
Councillor Hilary Harrington Councillor Peter Kendall 
Councillor Colin Sharpe  
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Democratic Services on 01900 702502. 

 

Agenda 
 
 
1. Election of Chair   
 

 To elect a Chair for the ensuing meeting. 
  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

  

4. Questions   
 

 To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm on a working day, allowing two clear 
working days before the day of the meeting. 

  

5. Application for the Review of a Premises Licence  (Pages 3 - 80) 
 

 



 
Procedure at Licensing Panel  (Pages 81 - 82) 
 

 

 
Chief Executive 
 

 
 
 



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Licensing Panel – 22 March 2022 

 

Application for the review of a premises licence 

 

Electric Soup, 2nd Floor, 41-45 Jane Street, Workington  

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor Colin Sharpe 
     Finance and Legal  

Report from Deborah Fletcher, Licensing and Compliance Officer 
(Specialist – Licensing and Compliance) 

Wards affected   St John’s Ward  

Is this a key decision  No 
 

 
 

1.0 The reason for the decision 

 
1.1 The Council is asked to consider an application under section 51 of The Licensing 

Act to review the premises licence for PL0747. The application has been made by 
Cumbria Constabulary.   

2.0  Recommendation 

 
2.1 The Panel should consider all the information contained in the report. They should 

make a decision from the options available in paragraph 7.0 taking into account 
information received from the applicant, licence holder, responsible authorities, any 
other persons and any relevant legislation or guidance. 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
3.1 Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2013 (The Act) allows for a responsible authority or 

any other person to apply to the licensing authority for a review of a premises 
licence. Before determining the application, the authority must hold a hearing to 
consider the application and any relevant representations received.   

4.0  Legislation and guidance   

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



4.1 The Act allows for premises licences to be issued indefinitely. Where a responsible 
authority or an any other person have issues with a premises, they can make an 
application under section 51 which requires the licensing authority to review that 
licence.   

 
4.2 The application starts a consultation process with other responsible authorities and 

interested parties which lasts for 28 consecutive days starting the day after the 
application is made. Notices are placed at the premises and displayed at Allerdale 
House, Workington.  

 
4.3 The consultation period is to allow for relevant representations to be received. 

Relevant representations are defined in The Act as representations that are 
relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives and have been made by the 
premises licence holder, responsible authority or an interested party. They must 
have been made within the required timescale and must not have been withdrawn.  

 
4.4 The Act states that the licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider the 

review application and any relevant representations within 20 working days 
following the end of the consultation period.    

 
4.5 The Home Office issued revised guidance under section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 in April 2017. Paragraphs 11.17 and 11.18 state as follows: 
 

11.17 The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take 
any further steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there 
is nothing to prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence 
holder and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is 
expected that licensing authorities will regard such informal warnings as an 
important mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are effectively 
promoted and that warnings should be issued in writing to the licence holder.  
 
11.18 However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental 
health officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement – either orally 
or in writing – that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address 
concerns, licensing authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should 
take this into account when considering what further action is appropriate. Similarly, 
licensing authorities may take into account any civil immigration penalties which a 
licence holder has been required to pay for employing an illegal worker.  

 
4.6 Paragraph 11.20 states that when considering which powers to invoke it is expected 

that licensing authorities should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or 
causes of the concerns that the representations identify. The remedial action taken 
should generally be directed at these causes and should always be no more than 
an appropriate and proportionate response to address the causes of concern that 
instigated the review.  

 
4.7 In reference to making temporary changes to the premises licence, the Guidance 

states that it will always be important that any detrimental financial impact that may 
result from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the 
promotion of the licensing objectives (paragraph 11.23). 

Page 4



5.0 Application to review a premises licence  

 
5.1 An application was received from Cumbria Constabulary on 3 February 2022. The 

premises licence relates to the premises known as Electric Soup, 2nd Floor, 41-45 
Jane Street, Workington. It benefits from a premises licence ref PL00747 which can 
be found at Appendix A. 

 
5.2 The premises is on the second floor of a mixed-use building. There are other 

businesses in the building that benefit from a premises licence, and they are 
mentioned in the representations from local residents. The layout of the premises 
can be found at Appendix B. 

 
5.3 The premises licence holder is Luke Stanger. Mr Stanger is also the designated 

premises supervisor.    
 
5.4 The application to review relates to the following licensing objectives 
 

1) The prevention of crime and disorder  
2) Public safety  

 
5.5 As part of the application to review the premises licence the applicants must state 

their grounds for review. The reasons are summarised as follows and expanded on 
in the application which is at Appendix C: 

 
1) The prevention of crime and disorder: ability to comply with the conditions 

contained in PL0747 
2) Public safety: concerns regarding the condition of the premises  

 
5.6 The application was sent to the applicant and circulated to the remaining 

responsible authorities. The licensing authority must advertise the application by 
way of notices at its main office and on the premises in question. Notices were 
placed on display at Allerdale House, Workington and placed on the premises on 3 
March 2022.  

 
5.7 The application asks the applicant to state if they have made an application to 

review the premises previously. The applicant has not made any previous 
applications to review this premises licence. 

6.0 Representations  

 
6.1 Relevant representations were received against the application. They comply with 

the requirements of section 52(7) of The Act.  
 
6.2 Responsible Authority – Allerdale Borough Council Environmental Health (Appendix 

D) 
 
6.3 Responsible Authority – Cumbria Fire and Rescue (Appendix E) 
 
6.4 Other persons – 7 representations (Appendix F) 
 

Page 5



7.0 Options available to the Panel  
 
7.1 Section 52 of The Act makes provision for determination of an application for 

review. The Panel must, having regard to the application and any relevant 
representations, take such of the steps mentioned in paragraph 7.2 as it considers 
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.   

 
7.2 The steps permitted under section 52(4) of The Act are: 
 

(a) To modify the conditions of the licence; 
 

(b) To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 
 

(c) To remove the designated premises supervisor; 
 

(d) To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
 

(e) To revoke the licence; 
  
7.3 The conditions of the licence are considered to be modified if any of them are 

altered or omitted or any new condition is added.  
 
7.4 If steps are taken to modify the conditions of the licence or exclude a licensable 

activity then that modification or exclusion can be made for a period specified by the 
panel. This period must not exceed three months.  

 
7.5 The determination made under section 52 of The Act does not have effect until the 

end of the period given for appealing against the decision or if the decision is 
appealed against, until the appeal is disposed of.  

 
7.6 The period allowed for appeal is 21 days from a party being given notice of the 

decision in writing. The appeal is to a Magistrates’ Court.  
  

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

A Premises Licence PL0747 

B Building layout     

C Review application  

D Representation – Allerdale Borough Council Environmental 
Health 

E Representation – Cumbria Fire and Rescue   

F Representation – Other persons  

  

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

Page 6



  

 
 
Report author and contact officer: 
Deborah Fletcher  
Licensing and Compliance Officer (Specialist – Licensing and Compliance)  
Deborah.fletcher@allerdale.gov.uk 
0303 123 1702 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Licensing Department            
Allerdale House  Tel:      0303 123 1702
Workington
Cumbria              E-mail: licensing@allerdale.gov.uk

CA14 3YJ           Web:    www.allerdale.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
PL0747

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

Electric Soup
2nd Floor, 41-45 Jane Street, Workington, CUMBRIA, CA14 3BW.

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

a performance of live music-

any playing of recorded music-

a performance of dance-

entertainment of a similar description to that falling within a performance of live music, any playing of recorded music or a
performance of dance

-

provision of late night refreshment-

the sale by retail of alcohol-

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To

E.  Performance of live music (Indoors)
Monday Noon 1:00am
Tuesday Noon 1:00am
Wednesday Noon 1:00am
Thursday Noon 1:00am
Friday Noon 3:00am
Saturday Noon 3:00am
Sunday Noon 1:00am

Sunday preceding Bank Holiday Monday, Thursday preceding Bank Holiday 
Friday, Christmas Eve, New Year's Eve, New Year's Day 12:00 to 03:00

F.  Playing of recorded music (Indoors)
Monday Noon 1:00am
Tuesday Noon 1:00am
Wednesday Noon 1:00am
Thursday Noon 1:00am
Saturday Noon 3:00am
Friday Noon 3:00am
Sunday Noon 1:00am

Sunday preceding Bank Holiday Monday, Thursday preceding Bank Holiday 
Friday, Christmas Eve, New Year's Eve, New Year's Day 12:00 to 03:00

G.  Performance of dance (Indoors)
Monday Noon 1:00am
Tuesday Noon 1:00am
Wednesday Noon 1:00am
Thursday Noon 1:00am

Part 1 - Premises Details

Page 1 of 11PL0747/34441

Page 9



Licensing Department            
Allerdale House  Tel:      0303 123 1702
Workington
Cumbria              E-mail: licensing@allerdale.gov.uk

CA14 3YJ           Web:    www.allerdale.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
PL0747

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES  continued ...

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To

G.  Performance of dance (Indoors)  continued ...
Friday Noon 3:00am
Saturday Noon 3:00am
Sunday Noon 1:00am

Sunday preceding Bank Holiday Monday, Thursday preceding Bank Holiday 
Friday, Christmas Eve, New Year's Eve, New Year's Day 12:00 to 03:00

H.  Entertainment of a similar description to that falling within E, F, or G (Indoors)
Monday Noon 1:00am
Tuesday Noon 1:00am
Wednesday Noon 1:00am
Thursday Noon 1:00am
Friday Noon 3:00am
Saturday Noon 3:00am
Sunday Noon 1:00am

Sunday preceding Bank Holiday Monday, Thursday preceding Bank Holiday 
Friday, Christmas Eve, New Year's Eve, New Year's Day 12:00 to 03:00

L.  Late night refreshment (Indoors)
Monday 11:00pm 1:00am
Tuesday 11:00pm 1:00am
Wednesday 11:00pm 1:00am
Thursday 11:00pm 1:00am
Friday 11:00pm 3:00am
Saturday 11:00pm 3:00am
Sunday 11:00pm 1:00am

Sunday preceding Bank Holiday Monday, Thursday preceding Bank Holiday 
Friday, Christmas Eve, New Year's Eve, New Year's Day 23:00 to 03:00

M.  The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption ON the premises only
Monday Noon 1:00am
Tuesday Noon 1:00am
Wednesday Noon 1:00am
Thursday Noon 1:00am
Friday Noon 3:00am
Saturday Noon 3:00am
Sunday Noon 1:00am

Sunday preceding Bank Holiday Monday, Thursday preceding Bank Holiday 
Friday, Christmas Eve, New Year's Eve, New Year's Day 12:00 to 03:00

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Description Time From Time To

Monday Noon 1:30am
Tuesday Noon 1:30am
Wednesday Noon 1:30am
Thursday Noon 1:30am

Page 2 of 11PL0747/34441

Page 10



Licensing Department            
Allerdale House  Tel:      0303 123 1702
Workington
Cumbria              E-mail: licensing@allerdale.gov.uk

CA14 3YJ           Web:    www.allerdale.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
PL0747

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES  continued ...

Description Time From Time To

Friday Noon 3:30am
Saturday Noon 3:30am
Sunday Noon 1:30am

Sunday preceding Bank Holiday Monday, Thursday preceding Bank Holiday 
Friday, Christmas Eve, New Year's Eve, New Year's Day 12:00 to 03:30

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES

- M.  The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption ON the premises only

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL (WHERE RELEVANT) OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

lukestanger@yahoo.co.uk
5 The Green, Bransty, Whitehaven, CUMBRIA, CA28 6BP.Luke Jordan Stanger

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE
AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Luke Jordan STANGER
5 The Green, Bransty, Whitehaven, CUMBRIA, CA28 6BP.

PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER AND ISSUING AUTHORITY OF PERSONAL LICENCE HELD BY DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR
WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

PA1132Licence No. Issued by Allerdale

Page 3 of 11PL0747/34441

Page 11



Licensing Department            
Allerdale House  Tel:      0303 123 1702
Workington
Cumbria              E-mail: licensing@allerdale.gov.uk

CA14 3YJ           Web:    www.allerdale.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
PL0747

ANNEXES

LICENSING ACT 2003 MANDATORY CONDITIONS 

Mandatory conditions where licence authorises the supply of alcohol

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence -

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence; or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal 
licence is suspended.

2.     The supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a 
personal licence.

Mandatory condition where Door Supervisors are provided

Any individual employed on the premises to carry out a security activity must be licensed by the Security Industry 
Authority.

The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) (Amendment) Order 2014

1. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or 
participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or 
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of 
alcohol for consumption on the premises-

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 
encourage, individuals to-

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible 
person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted 
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which 
carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward 
the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner 
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the 
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or 
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable 
manner; 

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that 
other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability). 

2. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where 
it is reasonably available. 

3.  (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

Page 4 of 11PL0747/34441

Page 12



Licensing Department            
Allerdale House  Tel:      0303 123 1702
Workington
Cumbria              E-mail: licensing@allerdale.gov.uk

CA14 3YJ           Web:    www.allerdale.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
PL0747

ANNEXES  continued ...

verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the 
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of 
age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being 
served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either-

(a) a holographic mark, or 

(b) an ultraviolet feature. 

4.  The responsible person must ensure that-

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises 
(other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or 
supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures-

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint; 

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to 
customers on the premises; and 

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, 
the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

The Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2014

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a 
price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 -

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(6);
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula -

P = D + (D x V)

Where -

(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of 

the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were 

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c)  “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence-

(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

Page 5 of 11PL0747/34441

Page 13



Licensing Department            
Allerdale House  Tel:      0303 123 1702
Workington
Cumbria              E-mail: licensing@allerdale.gov.uk

CA14 3YJ           Web:    www.allerdale.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
PL0747

ANNEXES  continued ...

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises 
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the 
member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “valued added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994
(7).

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be a 
whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by 
that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day 
(“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as a result 
of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take 
place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

CONDITIONS AGREED THROUGH MEDIATION WITH ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND CUMBRIA 
CONSTABULARY

  1. Upon commencement of their employment, all staff who are involved in the sale of alcohol will be trained in 
relation to the licensing objectives so as to reduce crime and disorder, promote public safety, prevent public 
nuisance and promote the protection of children from harm.  Refresher training will be provided at least once 
every six months and all training will be documented and made available to an authorised officer upon request.

  2. The premises will be an active member of any local “pub watch” or equivalent scheme where such a scheme 
is in existence.

  3. There shall be a personal licence holder present at the premises at all times licensable activities are taking 
place, except in the case of emergencies.

  4. A comprehensive CCTV system shall be installed internally and externally at the premises and will meet the 
following criteria:

a) The system will be maintained in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions;
b) The system will display on any recording the time and date of said recording;
c) The system will be recording whenever the premises is open to the public;
d) Any recordings will be retained for a minimum of 31 days after they are made and will be produced to an 

authorised officer upon request, so long as said request is in accordance with the principles of the Data 
Protection Act or any subsequent or alternative legislation;

e) The CCTV will capture all public areas of the premises, with the exception of the toilets.

  5. Appropriate signage alerting customers to the use of CCTV shall be displayed in a conspicuous position at the 
premises.

  6. A competent person trained in the use of and operation of the CCTV will be in attendance at the premise at all 
times that licensable activities are taking place.  Said person will be able to fully operate the CCTV system and 
be able to download data in a recognised format when requested.

  7. An incident register of all occurrences and ejections from the premises will be maintained at the premises and 
any details of public order offences will be recorded.  Said register will be made available upon request to an 

Page 6 of 11PL0747/34441

Page 14



Licensing Department            
Allerdale House  Tel:      0303 123 1702
Workington
Cumbria              E-mail: licensing@allerdale.gov.uk

CA14 3YJ           Web:    www.allerdale.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
PL0747

ANNEXES  continued ...

authorised officer.

  8. Prior to any occasion on which licensable activities are to be carried on at the premises, a risk assessment will 
be carried out to determine whether door supervisors are required.  An appropriate number of door 
supervisors will be utilised in accordance with said risk assessment.  

a) When the premises carries on licensable activities on Sundays, Mondays, Tuesdays, Wednesdays or 
Thursdays, two door supervisors will be utilised from 23:00 until the last customer has left the premises.  

b) When the premises carries on licensable activities on Fridays or Saturdays, two door supervisors will be 
utilised from 22:00 and a further two door supervisors will be utilised from 00:00 until the last customer has 
left the immediate vicinity of the premises.  

  9. The premises will have a written zero tolerance drugs policy which is enforced at all times.

10. The premises will have a written policy in relation to searching customers and will operate in accordance with 
said policy.

11. Any drinking vessels provided to customers shall be made of toughened glass, polycarbonate or another 
glass-alternative (any alternative to be agreed in writing by a representative of Cumbria Constabulary).

12. The dance floor will be a designated “glass free” area.  Signs will be present advising customers that glass is 
not permitted on the dance floor and staff will actively enforce the restriction.

13. There will be adequate first aid provision available at the premises. 

14. The management of the premises will ensure that the area immediately outside the entrance to the premises 
is kept clean, tidy and free from litter.

15. On any occasion that regulated entertainment is carried on at the premises, regular assessments of the noise 
emanating from the premises will be undertaken.  Wherever said assessments indicate that noise is likely to 
cause nuisance to any local residents, remedial action will be taken.  A written record will be maintained 
detailing the time of the noise assessments, the identity of the person undertaking the assessment, the results 
of the assessment and any remedial action undertaken.

16. The premises will have a written dispersal policy designed to encourage patrons to leave the venue and the 
area quickly and quietly.  Said policy must be agreed by Cumbria Constabulary (such agreement not to be 
unreasonably withheld).

17. Noise resultant from regulated entertainment shall not be audible inside adjoining noise-sensitive property or 
from 1-3 meters from the façade of noise-sensitive premises.  

18. There shall be placed at all exits from the premises in a place where they can be seen and easily read by the 
public (or member and their guests) notices pointing out the needs of local residents and the need to leave the 
premises and the area quietly. (Note: this may also include reference to vehicles.)  

19. A noise management plan shall be devised, submitted and approved (such approval not to be unreasonably 
withheld) by the licensing authority and subsequently implemented when the premises is in operation.

20. The placing of bottles into receptacles outside the premises is not permitted to take place between the hours 
of 20:00 and 8:00 to minimise disturbance to nearby properties on any day, except Sunday when no such 

Page 7 of 11PL0747/34441

Page 15



Licensing Department            
Allerdale House  Tel:      0303 123 1702
Workington
Cumbria              E-mail: licensing@allerdale.gov.uk

CA14 3YJ           Web:    www.allerdale.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
PL0747

ANNEXES  continued ...

disposal shall take place before 10:00.  

21. There shall be no persons under the age of eighteen years permitted on the premises at any time that 
licensable activities are taking place.

22. A “Challenge 25” Policy shall be adopted and enforced at the premises whereby any person who appears to 
be under the age of 25 shall be required to provide identification to prove that they are over the age of 18 
before they are permitted to purchase alcohol.  The only forms of acceptable identification will be:

a) A Passport;
b) A UK Photocard Driving Licence;
c) Official ID card issued by HM Forces or EU bearing a photograph and the date of birth of the holder;
d) Any other form of identification agreed with a representative of the Police Licensing Unit.

23. All staff who are involved in the sale of alcohol will be trained in relation to the “Challenge 25” policy upon the 
commencement of their employment, following which they will undertake refresher training at least once every 
twelve months.  Said training will be documented and will be made available to an authorised officer upon 
request.

24. “Challenge 25” posters will be displayed and will be visible at the entrance to the premises and from the point 
of sale of alcohol. 

25. The Licensee shall undertake to incorporate all licence conditions onto any temporary event notice issued for 
the premises.  

Signature of Authorised Officer

Page 8 of 11PL0747/34441

Page 16



Licensing Department            
Allerdale House  Tel:      0303 123 1702
Workington
Cumbria              E-mail: licensing@allerdale.gov.uk

CA14 3YJ           Web:    www.allerdale.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Summary
PL0747

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

Electric Soup
2nd Floor, 41-45 Jane Street, Workington, CUMBRIA, CA14 3BW.

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

a performance of live music-

any playing of recorded music-

a performance of dance-

entertainment of a similar description to that falling within a performance of live music, any playing of recorded music or a
performance of dance

-

provision of late night refreshment-

the sale by retail of alcohol-

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To

E.  Performance of live music (Indoors)
Monday Noon 1:00am
Tuesday Noon 1:00am
Wednesday Noon 1:00am
Thursday Noon 1:00am
Friday Noon 3:00am
Saturday Noon 3:00am
Sunday Noon 1:00am

Sunday preceding Bank Holiday Monday, Thursday preceding Bank Holiday 
Friday, Christmas Eve, New Year's Eve, New Year's Day 12:00 to 03:00

F.  Playing of recorded music (Indoors)
Monday Noon 1:00am
Tuesday Noon 1:00am
Wednesday Noon 1:00am
Thursday Noon 1:00am
Saturday Noon 3:00am
Friday Noon 3:00am
Sunday Noon 1:00am

Sunday preceding Bank Holiday Monday, Thursday preceding Bank Holiday 
Friday, Christmas Eve, New Year's Eve, New Year's Day 12:00 to 03:00

G.  Performance of dance (Indoors)
Monday Noon 1:00am
Tuesday Noon 1:00am
Wednesday Noon 1:00am
Thursday Noon 1:00am

Premises Details

Page 9 of 11PL0747/34441

Page 17



Licensing Department            
Allerdale House  Tel:      0303 123 1702
Workington
Cumbria              E-mail: licensing@allerdale.gov.uk

CA14 3YJ           Web:    www.allerdale.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Summary
PL0747

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES  continued ...

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To

G.  Performance of dance (Indoors)  continued ...
Friday Noon 3:00am
Saturday Noon 3:00am
Sunday Noon 1:00am

Sunday preceding Bank Holiday Monday, Thursday preceding Bank Holiday 
Friday, Christmas Eve, New Year's Eve, New Year's Day 12:00 to 03:00

H.  Entertainment of a similar description to that falling within E, F, or G (Indoors)
Monday Noon 1:00am
Tuesday Noon 1:00am
Wednesday Noon 1:00am
Thursday Noon 1:00am
Friday Noon 3:00am
Saturday Noon 3:00am
Sunday Noon 1:00am

Sunday preceding Bank Holiday Monday, Thursday preceding Bank Holiday 
Friday, Christmas Eve, New Year's Eve, New Year's Day 12:00 to 03:00

L.  Late night refreshment (Indoors)
Monday 11:00pm 1:00am
Tuesday 11:00pm 1:00am
Wednesday 11:00pm 1:00am
Thursday 11:00pm 1:00am
Friday 11:00pm 3:00am
Saturday 11:00pm 3:00am
Sunday 11:00pm 1:00am

Sunday preceding Bank Holiday Monday, Thursday preceding Bank Holiday 
Friday, Christmas Eve, New Year's Eve, New Year's Day 23:00 to 03:00

M.  The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption ON the premises only
Monday Noon 1:00am
Tuesday Noon 1:00am
Wednesday Noon 1:00am
Thursday Noon 1:00am
Friday Noon 3:00am
Saturday Noon 3:00am
Sunday Noon 1:00am

Sunday preceding Bank Holiday Monday, Thursday preceding Bank Holiday 
Friday, Christmas Eve, New Year's Eve, New Year's Day 12:00 to 03:00

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Description Time From Time To

Monday Noon 1:30am
Tuesday Noon 1:30am
Wednesday Noon 1:30am
Thursday Noon 1:30am

Page 10 of 11PL0747/34441

Page 18



Licensing Department            
Allerdale House  Tel:      0303 123 1702
Workington
Cumbria              E-mail: licensing@allerdale.gov.uk

CA14 3YJ           Web:    www.allerdale.gov.uk

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Summary
PL0747

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES  continued ...

Description Time From Time To

Friday Noon 3:30am
Saturday Noon 3:30am
Sunday Noon 1:30am

Sunday preceding Bank Holiday Monday, Thursday preceding Bank Holiday 
Friday, Christmas Eve, New Year's Eve, New Year's Day 12:00 to 03:30

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES

- M.  The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption ON the premises only

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

5 The Green, Bransty, Whitehaven, CUMBRIA, CA28 6BP.Luke Jordan Stanger

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Luke Jordan STANGER

STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED

There shall be no persons under the age of eighteen years permitted on the premises at any time that licensable
activities are taking place.

Signature of Authorised Officer

Page 11 of 11PL0747/34441

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



 

 

P
age 21



 

 

Skinny Jimmy’s 

Licensed   

Store 41 

Licensed  

 

Unit 2 Amani 

Studios 

Beautician’s   

(No Licence) 

Electric Soup 

PL0747 

 

Stanley’s 

Restaurant 

Licensed 

 

First 

Class 

(No 

licence) 

Pizza 

House 

Licensed 

Mad 

Scientist  

Licensed 

Entrance to upper 

floors  

P
age 22



 FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
LALPAC APPLICATION NO.  

LICENCE NO.  

OFFICER INITIALS  

 

ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 1 of 

31 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

ALLERDALE BOROUGH 
COUNCIL 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Allerdale – a great  
place to live, work 

and visit 

Allerdale Borough Council 
Allerdale House 

Workington 
Cumbria 

CA14 3YJ 
Tel: 0303 123 1702 

 

APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE OR 
CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE  

 

PREMISES NAME: 
 

Electric Soup  

Page 23



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 2 of 

31 

 

 

Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the 

Licensing Act 2003 

 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure 

that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  

 

 I Sgt Scott Adams on behalf of the Chief Constable of Cumbria Constabulary  

  (Insert name of applicant) 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club 

premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in 

Part 1 below (delete as applicable) 

 

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details   

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

Electric Soup  

2nd Floor 

41-45 Jane Street  

Post town   Workington  Post code (if known)  CA14 3BW 

 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known) 

Luke Stanger  

 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)  

PL0747 

 

 

Part 2 - Applicant details  

 

I am 

 

 

Please tick ✓ yes 

 

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible  

authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A)  

or (B) below) 

  

 

 

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)  

 

3) a member of the club to which this application relates      

Page 24



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 3 of 

31 

 

(please complete (A) below) 

 

 

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 

 

Please tick ✓ yes 

 

Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other title       

 (for example, Rev) 

 

Surname  First names 

             

 
 Please tick ✓ yes 

I am 18 years old or over 

 

 

 

Current postal  

address if  

different from 

premises 

address 

      

 
Post town       Post Code       

 
Daytime contact telephone number       

 
E-mail address 

(optional)  

      

 

 

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

 
Name and address 

      

Telephone number (if any) 

      

E-mail address (optional)  

      

 

Page 25



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 4 of 

31 

 

 

 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 

 

 Name and address 

 

PS1662 Scott Adams 
Problem Solving Sergeant 
Workington Town and St Michael's 
Email scott.adams@cumbria.police.uk 

Telephone number (if any) 

Tel - 101 option 2 extension 41662 
Mobile – 07773186084 
 

E-mail address (optional)  

scott.adams@cumbria.police.uk 

  

 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 

 

 Please tick one or more boxes ✓ 

1) the prevention of crime and disorder  

2) public safety  

3) the prevention of public nuisance  

4) the protection of children from harm  
 

Page 26

mailto:scott.adams@cumbria.police.uk
mailto:scott.adams@cumbria.police.uk


ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 5 of 

31 

 

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2) 

 

The application will detail 2 Licensing Objectives that have been compromised, namely. 
 
The Prevention of Crime and Disorder and  
Public Safety. 
 
In relation to the Crime Prevention Objective the only evidence that will be adduced at this stage 
are Regulatory Breaches or requirements of the Premises Licence. Non-compliance with the 
terms and conditions of a Premises Licence is a criminal offence, as such, any breaches identified 
would fall under the Crime Prevention Objective. 
 
When considering an Application for Review refence to Section 4 of the Licensing Act 2004 is an 
essential element. 
 
Extract from the Licensing Act 2003 
 

4 General duties of licensing authorities 

(1)A licensing authority must carry out its functions under this Act (“licensing functions”) 

with a view to promoting the licensing objectives. 

(2) The licensing objectives are— 

(a)the prevention of crime and disorder. 

(b)public safety. 

(c)the prevention of public nuisance; and 

(d)the protection of children from harm. 

(3) In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have regard to— 

(a)its licensing statement published under section 5, and 

(b)any guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182. 

 
Extract of the Section 182 Guidance 
  
 10.6 The 2003 Act provides that where an operating schedule or club operating schedule has 
been submitted with an application and there have been no relevant representations made by 

responsible authorities or any other person, the licence or certificate must be granted subject only 

to such conditions as are consistent with the schedule accompanying the application and any 
mandatory conditions required under the 2003 Act.  

 
10.7 Consistency means that the effect of the condition should be substantially the same as that 

intended by the terms of the operating schedule. If conditions are broken, this may lead to a 

criminal prosecution or an application for a review and it is extremely important therefore that 
they should be expressed on the licence or certificate in unequivocal and unambiguous terms. 

The duty imposed by conditions on the licence holder or club must be clear to the licence holder, 
club, enforcement officers and the courts 

 

In relation to the Public Safety Objective evidence will be adduced that relates primarily to fire 

safety which is at the top of the Governments list in the Section 182 Guidance where it sets out 

Page 27



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 6 of 

31 

 

Public Safety considerations. Additional concerns have also been identified which relate to the 

general maintenance and repair of the premises. 

 

Extract from the Section 182 Guidance  
 

2.8 Several matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may include: 
 

 • Fire safety.  

• Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances.  
• Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example 

communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts (see paragraph 

2.4 above).  
• Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid kits. 

 • Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the provision of 
information on late-night transportation). 

 • Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles. 

 • Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises (see paragraphs 2.12-
2.13, and Chapter 10; and  

• Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises (as noted in paragraph 2.3 above, this 
may also assist with promoting the crime and disorder objective). 2.9 The measures that are 

appropriate to promote public safety will vary between premises 

 
Extract from Allerdales Statement of Licencing Policy  

 

Pg 10 of the Policy  
 

The Authority expects premises that are open to customers to meet the highest standards of the 
relevant organisations to best secure the safety of staff and customers. This is also one of the 

licensing objectives. The Authority believes that customers should feel confident that when they 

enter premises, they will be safe. 
 

Chronology of Visits and Interactions  

 

3rd November 2021  

 

The premises were visited on the 3rd of November 2021 as part of a routine Licensing Audit 

process, the visit was pre-arranged with the Licence Holder who at that time was Jonathan Donnat  

 

The following Licensing conditions were not being observed. 

 
 
10.The premises will have a written policy in relation to searching customers and will operate in 
accordance with said policy. 
 
15.On any occasion that regulated entertainment is carried on at the premises, regular assessments 
of the noise emanating from the premises will be undertaken. Wherever said assessments indicate 
that noise is likely to cause nuisance to any residents, remedial action will be taken. A written record 
will be maintained detailing the time of the noise assessments, the identity of the person undertaking 
the assessment, the results of the assessment and any remedial action undertaken. 

 
19.A noise management plan shall be devised, submitted, and approved (such approval not to be 
unreasonably withheld) by the licensing authority and subsequently implemented when the premises 
is in operation. 
 
22.A “Challenge 25” Policy shall be adopted and enforced at the premises whereby any person who 

appears to be under the age of 25 shall be required to provide identification to prove that they 
are over the age of 18 before they are permitted to purchase alcohol. The only forms of 

Page 28



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 7 of 

31 

 

acceptable identification will be: 
  

a) 
A Passport. 

b) 
A UK Photocard Driving Licence. 

c) 

Official ID card issued by HM Forces or EU bearing a photograph and the date of birth of the holder. 
d) 

Any other form of identification agreed with a representative of the Police Licensing Unit. 
  
23.All staff who are involved in the sale of alcohol will be trained in relation to the “Challenge 25” 

policy upon the commencement of their employment, following which they will undertake 
refresher training at least once every twelve months. Said training will be documented and will 
be made available to an authorised officer upon request. 

  
 
No supporting documentation could be produced, and Mr Donnat readily accepted that no such 
policies or documentation were in place. 
 
A general inspection of the premises was then conducted, and the following matters were noted. 
 
North side stair well 

 
 
 
 

 
Broken office furniture stored in the fire exit and 
fire doors left open, all of which comprise the 
means of escape  
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 29



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 8 of 

31 

 

 
 

Large amount of broken electrical switches which increase the source of ignition of a fire and 
demonstrate the unsafe electrical installations  
 

 
 
 
 

Large parts of the ceiling 
were missing comprising 
the fire protection in the 
emergency exit  
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 30



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 9 of 

31 

 

  
 
 

 
 

Page 31



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 10 of 

31 

 

 
 

Numerous obstructions and trip hazards including waste material on the sub landing, ladders 
stored on the stairwell and trailing cables  
 
 

Page 32



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 11 of 

31 

 

 
 

Page 33



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 12 of 

31 

 

 
 

Page 34



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 13 of 

31 

 

 
 
Push bar not in place on the final exit door, the door was secured with a mortice lock and relies 
on someone remembering to open the door during trading hours. Other businesses were open at 
the time of the visit who also rely on this stairwell as a means of escape and the door was locked 
at the time of the visit. 
Other matters of concern include the lack of fire protection with gaps in the walls, ineffective fire 
door with gaps and holes in it. A poor attempt had been made to fireproof the door by screwing 
fire boarding over the top of the damaged door. 
 

Page 35



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 14 of 

31 

 

 
 

Page 36



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 15 of 

31 

 

 
 
Poor quality repair on the balustrade, materials used are flimsy, highly flammable and have no 
supporting framework so could easily be kicked through. The lack of care and attention to the 
repair demonstrates the general approach to maintenance of the premises. 
 

 

Page 37



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 16 of 

31 

 

 

 
 
The stair nosing on parts of the stairwell are badly worn and splitting and could cause a slipping 
hazard on the escape route. 
 
South Side Stairwell  
 

Page 38



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 17 of 

31 

 

 
 
Missing fire door which seems to be a long-standing issue as this area serves as a beer cellar for a 
premise on the 1st floor, the rubbish piled up on the landing does not belong to Electric Soup and 
this was an obstruction to Skinny Jimmy s which was not open to the public at the time of the 
visit but demonstrates a general lack of co-operation and co-ordination between the businesses 
relating to fire safety. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: cable 

which was 

slung 

across the 

stairwell at 

head height  

Page 39



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 18 of 

31 

 

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read 

guidance note 3) 

 

 
 

Poor quality workmanship on the electrical installation, issues included unsupported junction box, 

primary insulation on the twin and earth wiring was exposed, unclipped wires held in place by 

plastic cable ties, hanging wires not properly terminated and breaks in the fire protection where 

the wires go through the wall. 

 

Page 40



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 19 of 

31 

 

 
 

Page 41



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 20 of 

31 

 

 
 

 
 

Page 42



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 21 of 

31 

 

 
 

Electrical installation appears poorly maintained with basic safety measures not in place. Circled 

in yellow above no plastic cover in place covering the fuses  

 

 
 

Switch covers lose exposing wiring that is potential live. 

Page 43



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 22 of 

31 

 

 

Miscellaneous Disrepair  

 

There was a general lack of cleaning, maintenance, and repair across the premises. Matters of 

immediate concern were the lack of emergency lighting, lack of any proper testing regime for the 

fire alarm and emergency lights and structural damage to the building which has a direct impact 

on some of the facilities in the premises in particular the customer toilets. 

 

 
 

Gents’ toilet ceiling consisting of flimsy hard board that had suffered extensive water damage, it 

had been crudely propped using some timber that could have easily been kicked away potentially 

allowing the ceiling boards to fall. 

 

 
 

The facilities were far from fit for use with extensive areas of dirt and grime, no doors on the 

Page 44



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 23 of 

31 

 

cubicles and no seats on the toilets. 

 

   
 

Poor quality repair on the main staircase  

 

 
 

Electric heater situated over the main doors was secured by one fixing and was supported in the 

main by the electrical flex that appeared to be under strain exposing the primary insulation. 

 

Following this visit a report was made to Management at the Council who were rightly concerned 

and shared the information with internal and external partner agencies. 

 

4th November 2021  

 

 

The Licence holder was sent an e mail detailing the problems with copies of the photographs that 
detailed some of the concerns. A copy of the e mail is attached as Appendix A 

 

Page 45



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 24 of 

31 

 

 

 

5th November 2021  

 

Visit conducted by Environmental Health who provided feedback on their findings by e mail. A 

copy of there e mail attached as Appendix B 

 

15th November 2021  

 

A joint visit was conducted by the Licensing Authority and Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service. 

Officers attended the premises at 09.30 hrs and met with Jonny Donnat. The appointment was pre-

arranged days before. 

 

The premises were in much the same condition as the initial visit on the 3rd of November 2021. The 

Fire Safety officer was immediately concerned by the complete lack of fire safety management 

and the general condition of the premises in particular the north side stairwell. 

 

Whilst in the stair well Mr Donnat claimed that the fire exits are always clear when he is open and 

confirmed that he was open for business over the weekend of the 12th and 13th November 2021. 

 

There were numerous obstructions in the North stairwell that were in the same position as they 

were on the 3rd of November including ladders and a glass cabinet. He was specifically challenged 

that the location of the items was in the same place and asked the question again regarding 

clearing the exit before he opens to the public. 

Mr Donnat stood by his original answer that the exits were clear at the weekend and implied that 

the items had been put back that morning. 

 

 

       
 

10th December 2021 

 

A multi-agency visit took place to track progress on the issues above, structural improvements 

were underway but numerous matters were still outstanding including a test of the electrical 

installation and a working fire alarm. Notes of the meeting were circulated to all parties which 

highlight the pending actions. The document sent to the attendees is attached as Appendix C 

 

12th December 2021 

 

A complaint was received that the premises had possibly traded beyond its permitted hours. The 

Page 46



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 25 of 

31 

 

terminal hour for alcohol sales is 3am. The complaint was followed up on the 14th of December 

2021 where the Officer found that no CCTV recordings were available. A requirement of the 

Premises Licence is that CCTV recordings are available for 31 days and produced on request to a 

Police Officer or Local Authority Officer. 

A report was produced detailing the finding from the Officer from this complaint which is found 

as Appendix D 

 

14th January 2022  

 

 

A visit at the premises was conducted to check if the CCTV issues detected on the 12th of 

December 2021 had been properly rectified. The observations on the day were that only 13 days 

recordings were available disclosing yet another potential breach of the premises licence 

 

25th January 2022  

 

A meeting was arranged with the Licence Holder Luke Stanger and Mr Donnat the previous 

Licence Holder. The meeting was followed up by e mail which is shown below. 

 

Luke, Jonny, 
Thank you for meeting with us today. Everything that we have discussed is listed in the 
attached documents which I know you took away printed copies of. The attached is the bases 
for which we would set any review. With this in mind I am happy to work with you both to 
build your businesses, offering any support I can as you move through this process. 
 
Luke, 
Please keep in mind if there are breaches of your licence or evidence that the above is not 
rectified when you are serving then we will be forced to take this to review with a very likely 
outcome being revocation of the licence. This will be reviewed regularly but for the next 12 
months ending 25th January 2023 any breaches will be progressed to a licensing review. 
 
Good luck with the future running of these businesses 
 
PS1662 Scott Adams 
Problem Solving Sergeant 
Workington Town and St Michael's 
Email scott.adams@cumbria.police.uk 
Tel - 101 option 2 extension 41662 
Mobile – 07773186084 
 
The attached documentation sent to the parties referred to in the e mail above were 

Appendices A, B and D already included in this bundle. In addition to these documents there 

was a chronology of all the visits conducted which is added as Appendix E 

 

2nd February 2022 

 

Information came to light that an event that was targeting Under 18s was being marketed, 

scheduled to occur on the 11th of February 2022. The Police have had numerous issues with 

such event and strongly discourage such events on Licensed Premises. However Electric Soup 

have a specific condition on the Premises Licence that prohibits any person under the age of 

18 being on the premises. 

The link to the ticket sales was followed where there were no exclusions regarding under 

18’s. The only term that was noted was one with regards to payment where a person under the 

age of 18 must seek the permission of there parent or guardian before making a payment 

Page 47

mailto:scott.adams@cumbria.police.uk


ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 26 of 

31 

 

using the ticket platform. This term seems more to be of contractual issue in that under 

18’swould normally be prohibited from entering into contracts other than necessities. The 

Police believe that if this event was to go ahead a large bulk if not all the customers would be 

under 18.  

The Police will be intervening to stop this event as we believe it with be a risk and threat to 

the Protection of Children from Harm Objective and the Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

Objective not to mention a flagrant breach of the Premises Licence Condition detailed at 

Condition 21 (Conditions agreed with Environmental Health and Cumbria Constabulary) 

Screen shots of the web page selling the tickets is attached Appendix F 

   
 

 

Conclusion and Reasoning for the Application  

 

The Application contains matters that could have a direct effect on the loss of life but at all stages 

the approach has been to consider Regulatory Guidance and Policy, the following areas of 

Guidance have been considered. 

 

The Regulators Code  

 

2.2 In responding to non-compliance that they identify, regulators should clearly explain what the 
non-compliant item or activity is, the advice being given, actions required, or decisions taken, and 

the reasons for these. Regulators should provide an opportunity for dialogue in relation to the 
advice, requirements, or decisions, with a view to ensuring that they are acting in a way that is 

proportionate and consistent.  

This paragraph does not apply where the regulator can demonstrate that immediate enforcement 
action is required to prevent or respond to a serious breach or were providing such an 

opportunity would be likely to defeat the purpose of the proposed enforcement action. 
 

The areas of concern were clearly set out to the Licence Holder using plain English within the e 

mail sent on the 4th of November 2021 (Appendix A). The conditions that prevailed at the premises 

were sufficiently serious to warrant immediate enforcement action, but an open offer of assistance 

was made. The licence holder did not respond to the e mail of the 4th of November 2021, nor did he 

even acknowledge receipt  

 

3.1 Regulators should take an evidence-based approach to determining the priority risks in their 
area of responsibility and should allocate resources where they would be most effective in 

addressing those priority risks.  

3.2 Regulators should consider risk at every stage of their decision-making processes, including 
choosing the most appropriate type of intervention or way of working with those regulated; 

targeting checks on compliance; and when taking enforcement action. 
 

The risks identified on the initial visit of the 3rd of November 2021 were significant, as such the 

Authority have sought to intervene in the most appropriate way  

 

3.4 Regulators, in making their assessment of risk, should recognise the compliance record of 

those they regulate, including using earned recognition approaches and should consider all 
available and relevant data on compliance, including evidence of relevant external verification. 

 
Anecdotal evidence suggests that the compliance record of premises users within the building has 

been poor, comments from other stakeholders were received that certain businesses and 

individuals were well known to various Authorities. 

 

5.1 Regulators should provide advice and guidance that is focused on assisting those they regulate 
to understand and meet their responsibilities. When providing advice and guidance, legal 

requirements should be distinguished from suggested good practice and the impact of the advice 

or guidance should be considered so that it does not impose unnecessary burdens. 

Page 48



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 27 of 

31 

 

 

The e mail of the 4th of November 2021 (Appendix A) refers to the Licensing Conditions and 

clearly sets out the Criminal Liability that would apply for non-compliance. It goes on to refer to 

areas of Guidance such as the Workplace Regulations, the Electricity at Work Regulations and the 

Regulatory (Fire Safety) Reform Order.  

 
5.6 Regulators should have mechanisms to work collaboratively to assist those regulated by more 

than one regulator. Regulators should consider advice provided by other regulators and, where 

there is disagreement about the advice provided, this should be discussed with the other regulator 
to reach agreement. 

 

An agreed approach on the next steps were made between the Fire Rescue Service and the 

Licensing Authority, both parties had shared concerns and common aims, those being the 

protection of customers and staff using the facilities and public safety. 

 

Section 182 Guidance  

 

11.5 Any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may apply for a review of a premises licence or 

club premises certificate. Therefore, the relevant licensing authority may apply for a review if it is 
concerned about licensed activities at premises and wants to intervene early without waiting for 

representations from other persons. However, it is not expected that licensing authorities should 

normally act as responsible authorities in applying for reviews on behalf of other persons, such as 
residents or community groups. These individuals or groups are entitled to apply for a review for 

a licence or certificate if they have grounds to do so. It is also reasonable for licensing authorities 

to expect other responsible authorities to intervene where the basis for the intervention falls within 
the remit of that other authority. For example, the police should take appropriate steps where the 

basis for the review is concern about crime and disorder or the sexual exploitation of children. 
Likewise, where there are concerns about noise nuisance, it is reasonable to expect the local 

authority exercising environmental health functions for the area in which the premises are 

situated to make the application for review. 
 

The Guidance encourages the use of powers under Primary Legislation in this case, the Regulatory 

(Fire Safety) Reform Order as a means of first response. Action under the Primary Statute is 

underway. Whilst the Licence holder has been co -operative there has been very little in the way 

of a meaningful response especially between the 3rd of November and the 15th of November. It is 

entirely accepted that some of the issues may involve experts coming in to rectify the problems 

but basic housekeeping matters such as clearing the rubbish and obstructions from the north side 

stair well would have been an easy fix and would have incurred no financial impact. For this 

reason, the Licensing Authority are very concerned regarding the Public Safety Objective being 

undermined. 

 

11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems 

identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning of their 
concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise the licence or 

certificate holder of the steps, they need to take to address those concerns. A failure by the holder 

to respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a decision to apply for a review. Co-operation 
at a local level in promoting the licensing objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not 

be used to undermine this cooperation 
 

As already stated, the Licence Holder was put on early notice of concerns, many hours of work 

occurred to pull together photographs with explanations and areas of guidance that needed to be 

understood. It was disappointing that the e mail was not acknowledge and basic matters such as 

the housekeeping issues in the North Stair well had still not been addressed 11 days later, 

 

Policy Considerations  

 

Pg 9 of the Statement of Licensing Policy states. 

Page 49



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 28 of 

31 

 

 

A premises licence will not normally be granted unless the premises meets the statutory and any 

reasonable additional requirements of the Responsible Authorities 

 
The premises fall far below any level of legal compliance and the issues appear to be long 

standing if it was to be presented in such a way at a new application stage it would not be granted 

a licence. 

 

Pg 9 of the policy continues to say. 

 

The Authority considers it best practice for all applicants to assess the risks in relation to the 

following issues.  
• Promotion of responsible drinking  

• Awareness of drink spiking  
• Zero tolerance drug policies including the appropriate use of searching/amnesty boxes to 

combat drug crime  

• Assessment of the safe capacity for the venue and adequate monitoring and control measures 

to avoid overcrowding determined by the fire risk assessment 

 • Regular removal of all glasses and bottles  
• Specific precautions for the use of special effects 

 • Adequate provision for ventilation/temperature control  

• Assessment, monitoring and management of noise exposure  

• Assessment for crowd dynamics  

• Safety of gas and electrical services 

 • Fire safety and emergency lighting 

 

• Easily accessible free drinking water 
 • Sanitation  

• Safe seating  

• Maintenance records of premises and equipment demonstrating compliance with statutory 

requirements any procedural requirements of relevant organisations (where such conditions 

will not duplicate requirements under existing legislation), for example electrical safety, fire 

alarm, emergency lighting, ceiling certificate etc. The Authority expects premises that are open 

to customers to meet the highest standards of the relevant organisations to best secure the safety 

of staff and customers. This is also one of the licensing objectives. The Authority believes that 

customers should feel confident that when they enter premises, they will be safe 

 

The items highlighted in bold type were all deficient as already detailed in this application  

 

Pg 24 of the policy reiterates advice already stated in the Regulators Code and Section 182 

Guidance 

 

8.21 Where possible and appropriate, the Licensing Authority and Responsible Authorities will 
give early warning to licence holders of any concern about problems identified at premises and of 

the need for improvement   

 

Appendix A demonstrates early notice was given. 

 

Pg 31 of the policy states. 

 

14.4 The Licensing Authority works in partnership with all the Responsible Authorities under the 
Act on compliance issues. This joint working provides for the targeting of resources towards high-

risk premises and activities that require greater attention, while providing a lighter touch in 
respect of low-risk premises that are operated well. 

 

It is very clear from the chronology that all partners have worked in partnership with the Licence 

Holder and Landlord to rectify the problems. It is also fair to say that there have been positive 

Page 50



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 29 of 

31 

 

steps made in relation to the public safety matters. However, in the latter part of 2021 there were 

numerous Licensing Breaches in relation to CCTV and potential serving beyond permitted hours 

that undermined the progress being made in other areas. The most recent information regarding 

the Under 18 event put the Police in a difficult predicament especially given the frank discussion 

on the 25th of January 2022.  

 

The Police have been put in a position where they have no alternative but to apply for a Review of 

the Licence and to bolster comments made in the e mail of the 25th of January 2022, I highlight the 

following paragraph of the Section 182 Guidance  

 

 

1.23 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and exclusions of 
licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a temporary period of up to three 

months. Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three months could impact on 
the business holding the licence financially and would only be expected to be pursued as an 

appropriate means of promoting the licensing objectives or preventing illegal working. So, for 

instance, a licence could be suspended for a weekend as a means of deterring the holder from 
allowing the problems that gave rise to the review to happen again. However, it will always be 

important that any detrimental financial impact that may result from a licensing authority’s 
decision is appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the licensing objectives and for the 

prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. But where premises are found to be trading 

irresponsibly, the licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take 

tough action to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed 

insufficient, to revoke the licence 

 
The final 4 lines of this paragraph are particularly relevant and need to be read in the context of 

the significant time spent by all partners in seeking to achieve compliance. The Licence Holder 

was given an open line of communication to use if he was in doubt of anything or wanted 

assistance or clarification on anything but sees fit to organise an event that is not only highly 

problematic for the Police but is a clear breach of his licence. Given the level of intervention, to 

even consider such an event is irresponsible in the extreme so we do believe that a Revocation of 

the Licence is both necessary and appropriate  

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Page 51



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 30 of 

31 

 

                                                                                                                                  Please tick ✓ yes 

Have you made an application for review relating to the 

premises before 

 

 

 

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year 

                
 

 

 

 

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were 

and when you made them 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 52



ALL12(APR2017)                                                                                                                                    Page 31 of 

31 

 

  

                                                                                                                                  Please tick ✓ 

yes 

 

• I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities 

and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, 

as appropriate 

 

• I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my 

application will be rejected 

 

       
 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE 

A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 

WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 

TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.   

 

Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 4) 

 

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read 

guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity. 

 

Signature      

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Date                   

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Capacity            

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence 

associated with this application (please read guidance note 6) 

      

Post town 

      

Post Code 

      

Telephone number (if any)        

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address 

(optional)       

 

 
Notes for Guidance  

 

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other 

statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area. 

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are 

included in the grounds for review if available. 

4. The application form must be signed. 

5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided 

that they have actual authority to do so. 

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application. 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Licensing Review Submission – Electric Soup, Jane Street, Workington 

 

In November 2021 I was contacted by Mark Marshall from Allerdale BC Licensing 

Department regarding concerns he had around fire safety issues following a recent 

visit to Electric Soup.  I visited the premises on the 15th November accompanied by 

Mark where we met with Jonny Donnat who, as the business owner is one of the 

Responsible Persons for the premises.  During the visit I observed numerous 

breaches in fire safety legislation including; 

- No Fire Risk Assessment  

- A fire alarm that Jonny had no working knowledge of, no access to the alarm 

panel and no knowledge of maintenance or testing on the alarm, in addition it 

appeared that the alarm coverage was inadequate. 

- No emergency procedures in place, no staff training or evidence of evacuation 

drills. 

- The compartmentation within the building was compromised in a number of 

places. 

- One of the emergency exit routes was blocked with items of furniture and the 

final exit door from this route difficult to open. 

- The premises had inadequate provision of emergency lighting for which there 

were also no maintenance and testing records. 

- The mains electrics appeared to be in poor condition and no evidence of a 

hard wiring test was available. 

- Inadequate provision of fire extinguishers and no maintenance on fire 

extinguishers 

- An electrical intake box in one of the stairways containing wiring in a poor 

state of repair and the box itself was not fire resistant material. 

The premises was in a generally poor state of repair and the occupants 

demonstrated little regard for the provision of fire safety arrangements.   

At this time I explained to Jonny the serious nature of the breaches found and the 

need for him to take immediate action to rectify a number of these.  I subsequently 

issued an Enforcement Notice which reflects the seriousness of the issues and was 

based upon the lack of a suitable and sufficient Fire Risk Assessment and which 

would provide him with clear detail on all the deficiencies along with a prioritised plan 

to remedy these. The Fire Service is committed to working alongside businesses to 

enable them to continue to trade whilst improving fire safety measures, normally 

through both verbal advice or a written notification of deficiencies and only takes 

formal action such as an Enforcement Notice where significant, serious breaches of 

legislation are found together with doubts around the ongoing management of a 

premises or lack of confidence that remedial action will be taken. In addition, Jonny 

agreed to close the premises temporarily until remedial action had taken place and 

suitable measures were in place to enable the business to operate safely.  It should 

also be noted that The Enforcement Notice was complied with in a timely manner 

although a number of deficiencies remain outstanding. A copy of the Enforcement 

Notice is appended to this document. 

Page 57



A follow up visit to discuss progress was held at the premises on the 10th December 

which was attended by myself, Mark Marshall, Jonny Donnat, Bobby Shamin – 

premises owner and Ian Ridley – Fire Risk Assessor.    

Ian Ridley advised that he had carried out a Fire Risk Assessment and some 

remedial work had taken place to enable the venue to continue to operate; 

 A ‘waking watch’ was in place to compensate for the lack of a functional fire 

alarm involving operating at a reduced capacity and employing staff whose 

sole responsibility was to patrol the remaining two means of escape / exits to 

ensure they remained fully accessible. 

 There was a plan to install a new fire alarm although this had been delayed 

due to supply issues. 

 The blocked means of escape had been cleared and a push bar fitted to the 

exit that had been difficult to open. 

 Emergency lighting had been fitted. 

 Some improvements had been made to the compartmentation although this 

still required further upgrading. 

I was satisfied that the premises had been made safer and should be allowed to 

continue operating although noted there was still a significant amount of work to 

do in order to bring the premises up to a satisfactory standard in terms of it’s fire 

safety and as such a further review meeting was arranged for early February. 

A further meeting took place on the 9th February attended by myself, Scott 

Adams from Cumbria Police, Mark Marshall, Bobby Shamin, Jonny Donnat and 

Luke Stanger – Premises License Holder.  At this meeting it became clear that 

little progress had been made since December, issues outstanding were: 

 No new fire alarm had been installed. 

 The mains electric still appeared to be in a poor state and no hard wiring 

test had been carried out 

 There were still issues with the compartmentation in the building 

 No emergency procedures, evidence of staff training or evacuation drills. 

 The electrical intake box on one of the means of escape stairways had not 

been made suitably fire resisting and the wiring within the box still in a 

poor state of repair. 

 

 The Fire Risk Assessment (appended to this document) sets out guidance on 

actions required and their relative priority.  It was clear during our meeting that the 

Responsible Persons (Bobby Shamin, Jonny Donnat and Luke Stanger) had not 

taken due regard of this Fire Risk Assessment and had no clear plan for continued 

works / improvements.  Following the meeting an action plan was sent to Luke 

Stanger by way of providing some further clarity and a clear way forward, this plan is 

also appended to this document. 

 

Page 58



I remain concerned about the ongoing fire safety arrangements at Electric Soup 

including both the outstanding actions and how fire safety will be managed going 

forward.  

 

Conclusion  

Numerous paragraphs contained within the Section 182 guidance are of particular 

importance  

11.18 However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental health officers 

have already issued warnings requiring improvement – either orally or in writing – that have failed as 

part of their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing authorities should not merely 

repeat that approach and should take this into account when considering what further action is 

appropriate. Similarly, licensing authorities may take into account any civil immigration penalties 

which a licence holder has been required to pay for employing an illegal worker. 

The Fire and Rescue Service has worked closely with the operators in what can only 

be described as a light touch way given the unsafe conditions that prevailed. Whilst 

the Enforcement Notice has been complied with the overall aim that we were 

seeking to achieve has failed as a number of actions from their Fire Risk 

Assessment remain outstanding.  It has become apparent throughout our dealings 

that had it not been for Regulatory pressure very little would have been achieved at 

the premises. For this reason, I believe that meaningful action needs to be 

considered. 

Whilst suspension of a licence could have a financial impact on a business if we are 

not given written evidence that all the matters of concerns have been rectified, I 

would suggest that a suspension for up to 3 months or until the works have been 

completed to the satisfaction of Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service is both necessary 

and appropriate. 

11.19 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is appropriate, it 

may take any of the following steps:  

• modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions or any 

alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the hours of opening or by 

requiring door supervisors at particular times;  

• exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude the performance 

of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the incidental live and recorded 

music exemption)10;  

• remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that the problems 

are the result of poor management; 

 • suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; • revoke the licence. 

 11.20 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities should so 

far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the representations identify. 

The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these causes and should always be no 

Page 59



more than an appropriate and proportionate response to address the causes of concern that 

instigated the review. 

The paragraphs above raise important questions;  

1. The management- My initial dealing with Mr Donnat, whilst amicable did 

cause me concern, the general lack of understanding with regards to Fire 

Safety left me feeling very worried. Further to this at or around the time of the 

first visit the Licence was transferred to Luke Stanger yet he was completely 

absent on the meeting on the 10th of December 2021 and made no attempt to 

reach out to me to seek advice or clarification of the concerns held by the 

CFRS 

2. The premises- Multiple businesses occupy this building and the lack of any 

oversight from the Landlord has allowed such a situation to prevail. A building 

of this age and condition needs clear and simple instructions being issued to 

tenants on what exactly their responsibilities are, it seems to me that if one of 

the premises are made safe but those around and below are in a comprised 

state especially with regards to electrical safety then the premises under 

scrutiny will be no better off  This aspect of the problem may beyond the 

scope of the Licensing Committee but it is an important factor to consider 

when analysing the root causes. 

If additional conditions are to be considered I would suggest they would only be 

appropriate should the works have been carried out to a legal standard. My fear for 

the future would be that things could quickly deteriorate so carefully worded 

conditions that don’t duplicate Primary Legislation are something that we would 

welcome. I have considered the general position on conditions laid out in the Section 

182 Guidance. 

2.11 Where there is a requirement in other legislation for premises open to the public or for 

employers to possess certificates attesting to the safety or satisfactory nature of certain equipment 

or fixtures on the premises, it would be inappropriate for a licensing condition to require possession 

of such a certificate. However, it would be permissible to require as a condition of a licence or 

certificate, if appropriate, checks on this equipment to be conducted at specified intervals and for 

evidence of these checks to be retained by the premises licence holder or club provided this does not 

duplicate or gold-plate a requirement in other legislation. Similarly, it would be permissible for 

licensing authorities, if they receive relevant representations from responsible authorities or any 

other persons, to attach conditions which require equipment of particular standards to be 

maintained on the premises. Responsible authorities – such as health and safety authorities – should 

therefore make their expectations clear in this respect to enable prospective licence holders or clubs 

to prepare effective operating schedules and club operating schedules. 

By way of an example. 

1. A condition that requires the Licence holder to produce all the necessary 

documents attesting to the safety critical points raised in their own Fire Risk 

assessment  

2. A condition that requires the Licence Holder to maintain such certification in 

accordance with the recommendations contained therein eg maintaining fire 

extinguishers annually, servicing the fire alarm every bi annually  

Page 60



   

 

 

Juliet Grieves 

Fire Protection Inspector 

Cumbria Fire & Rescue Service 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



Cumbria County Council   

 

 
 

Serving the people of Cumbria 
cumbria.gov.uk      

 

 
Cumbria Fire & Rescue Service • Carleton Avenuie • Penrith • Cumbria • CA10 2FA 
Tel: • 07584 523092 • Web: cumbriafire.gov.uk • Email: julietgrieves@cumbria.gov.uk 

 
 

Mr J Donnat 
Electric Soup 
41-45 Jane Street 
Workington 
CA14 3BW 
        
 

Date: 17th November 2021 
       Our reference:   006a/C0118952/JLG 
      
       Please ask for: Juliet Grieves 
 
 

URGENT – ACTION REQUIRED 

 
Dear Mr Donnat, 

Enforcement Notice 423 

The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005: Article 30 

 

Premises: Electric Soup, 41-45 Jane Street, Workington, CA14 3BW 

 

An authorised inspector visited your premises on the 15th November and evaluated the fire safety 
provided.  The Cumbria Fire and Rescue Authority is of the opinion that you have failed to comply 
with a provision / provisions of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 because people were 
unsafe in case of fire.  The schedule to this Notice further explains the provision(s), with which you 
have not complied. 

The serving of this Notice dated the 17th November 2021 and numbered 423 is necessary to ensure 
that you adequately protect people in case of fire.  This authority has to make sure that you provide 
safety.  The attached schedule sets out what you must do. 

 

Timescale for Completion  

You are required to take steps to remedy the matters in the schedule by the 15th December 2021.  I 
will contact you prior to this date to arrange a further visit.  You may apply for an extension to the 
period of time within which you need to remedy the failure(s).  The authority will grant / deny 
additional time according to the efforts you have made.  If you require additional time, please contact 
my officer at your earliest opportunity. 

 

 

 

 

Page 63



Page 2 of 4 
 

Serving the people of Cumbria 
cumbria.gov.uk 

Penalty for Non-compliance  

If you do not comply with this Notice, you will have committed an offence and this authority will 
consider a prosecution against you.  A prosecution could lead to you being liable to a fine, 
imprisonment or both, subject to the Courts. 

 

Fire Safety Management 

The schedule sets out what you need to do to improve fire safety.  Taking the additional advice under 
this heading will help you to sustain those improvements. 

 

a) Risk Assessment   
 
Undertaking a fire risk assessment will identify the safety measures you have in place and any further 
measures you might need to take. If additional safety is required in consequence of the assessment, 
you must provide it. 
 
b) Review Risk Assessment   
 
You should review your fire risk assessment regularly especially if:  
 

i. There is reason to suspect that people are not safe in case of fire, or 
ii. There has been a significant change to the preventive and protective measures you have 

taken in case of fire. 
 
Where in consequence of any such review, changes to your safety measures are required; you 
should make those changes. 
 

c) Review Measures   
 
To stop your fire safety falling below an acceptable standard again, you should put in place a system 
of planning, organising, controlling, monitoring and reviewing the performance of each of the fire 
safety measures you have in place. 
 

d) Competent People   
 
You should appoint competent people to help you put in place appropriate safety measures in case of 
fire. Information to help you select competent help is available from: 
 
https://www.nationalfirechiefs.org.uk/Finding-fire-risk-assessor 
 

Alternative Solutions  

If you prefer to use a different solution to bring about safety from fire please contact my officer.  If 
your solution is agreed, this Notice will be withdrawn and another Notice served in its stead.  An 
alternative approach might enable you to apply an equally appropriate safety solution to better meet 
your needs.  Any alternative you propose must meet the ‘outcome(s)’ stated in the schedule. 

 

Page 64

https://www.nationalfirechiefs.org.uk/Finding-fire-risk-assessor


Page 3 of 4 
 

Serving the people of Cumbria 
cumbria.gov.uk 

Further Recommendations 

a) Sprinklers   
 
There is clear evidence that sprinklers can be effective in rapidly controlling and stopping fires and 
fire spread. The Fire and Rescue Service is campaigning to generally inform, educate and promote 
the installation of sprinkler systems. 
 
Sprinklers play a positive role in protecting life and reducing the economic and environmental cost of 
fire in any building. 
 
We believe that your premises would benefit from the installation of sprinklers. 
 
Sprinklers Can: 
 

 Reduce fire deaths and fire related injuries 
 Protect property and heritage 
 Reduce the effects of arson 
 Reduce the environmental impact of fire 
 Reduce the cost and disruption of fire to business and the community 
 Reduce the risk to fire-fighters 
 Provide flexibility in building design and  
 Compensate for other safety measures 

 
 

Route to Appeal 

You can legally appeal this Notice.  To do so, you must appeal 'by way of complaint for an order to 
the Clerk to the Magistrates’ Court in the area in which the premises are situated', within 21 days 
from the day on which this notice was served. 

The bringing of an appeal has the effect of suspending the operation of this Enforcement Notice until 
the appeal is finally disposed of or (if the appeal is withdrawn), until the withdrawal of the appeal. 

You can clarify or challenge what you need to do.  You can also comment on the inspection.  Our 
‘Appeals, Challenges and Complaints’ procedures tell you how and are available at: 

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/cumbriafire/services/enforcement.asp. 

 

Yours Faithfully 

 

Juliet Grieves 

Fire Protection Inspector 

On behalf of the Cumbria Fire and Rescue Authority 

Enc. Schedule of Enforcement Notice 

 

 

Page 65

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/cumbriafire/services/enforcement.asp


Page 4 of 4 
 

Serving the people of Cumbria 
cumbria.gov.uk 

Important Information – schedule referred to in Enforcement Notice 

Notes to this schedule: 

The government guidance most suitable to your premises is Small and Medium Places of Assembly  
which can be found at http://www.cfoa.org.uk/19512 

Before you make certain changes to the premises, you may have to apply for approval from statutory 
bodies and/or others having interest in them.  If you have doubt about the need for approval, you 
should ask the relevant body.   

For example, you may have to apply for approval from a Building Control Body to make material 
alterations http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/2214/regulation/3/made.   

You might also need to apply for the property owners' permission or for listed building consent 
https://www.historicengland.org.uk/advice/planning/consents/lbc/, among others. 
 
 

 

  
 
Outcome 
 
This work is required to ensure fire safety hazards within the premises are identified 
and evaluated and adequate steps taken to mitigate for any risk. 
 
Action 
 
A suitable and sufficient Fire Safety Risk Assessment should be carried out.  The 
assessment should identify the risks to which relevant persons are exposed for the 
purpose of identifying any required general fire precautions.  The assessment 
should be reviewed on a regular basis and should be available on the premises 
when required. 
 
Reason 
 
No Fire Risk Assessment has been carried out at the premises as required by 
Article 9 of The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005. 
 
 
This is contrary to Articles 9 (1) 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 66

http://www.cfoa.org.uk/19512
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/2214/regulation/3/made
https://www.historicengland.org.uk/advice/planning/consents/lbc/


Issue that 
requires 
addressing  

Documentary 
source of 
Information 
where the issue 
was raised  

Whose 
Responsibility is 
it to action   

Recommendations 
on what 
documents/evidence 
required to 
demonstrate 
compliance  

Priority Colour 
Code  

Licensing 
Conditions. 
Written drugs 
policy 

Annex A to the 
Review Application  

Premises Licence 
Holder  

Written Policy   

Licensing 
Conditions 
Noise monitoring 
records  

Annex A to the 
Review Application 

Premises Licence 
Holder 

Written records   

Licensing 
Conditions  
Noise 
management 
plan 

Annex A to the 
Review Application 

Premises Licence 
Holder 

Written Policy  Luke verbally advised 
on the 9th of Feb 2022 
that he has done this  

Licensing 
Conditions  
Challenge 25 
training for staff  

Annex A to the 
Review Application 

Premises Licence 
Holder 

Copy of training records   

Fire Safety North 
Stair Well 
Fire Separation   
House Keeping 
Stair Nosing’s  

Pg 7-16 of the Review 
Application  

TBC Written evidence 
required to establish 
responsibilities regarding 
maintenance of the 
common parts of the 
building. Provide 
photographs 
demonstrating the repairs  

Stair noising’s still 
need completing and 
documentation/copy 
of the lease detailing 
tenants/landlords’ 
responsibility  

Balcony Are Annex 2 to the 
Review Application  

Duty holder 
(employer)  

Risk Assessment detailing 
the control measures in 
place (physical protection 
with a raised barrier 
system) but you need to 
address remaining risks 
such as maintenance of 
the premises in this area 
such as lights, clearing 
any debris etc  
Include photos of the 
improvements made to 
the area   

The major risk to 
customers has been 
taken care of by the 
installation of 
physical protection 
around the hazard. 
The outstanding 
documentation is the 
risk assessment and 
plan to reinstate the 
floor  

PAT testing  Annex 2 to the 
Review Application 
and you own Fire Risk 
Assessment ( pg 35 ) 
Whilst there are other 
matters raised in 
Annex 2 they cannot 
be directly linked to  
Licensable Activity or 
the Public Safety 
Objective but are still 
never the less legal 
requirements  

Employer/Licence 
Holder  

PAT testing register  This matter has been 
highlighted in your 
own RA as Category 1 
which means 
imminent risk of fire  

Highlight 
Changes in Level  

Annex 2 to the 
Review Application  

Premises Licence 
Holder  

Before and After Photos   

Page 67



Fire Separation 
South Stairwell  

Pg 17 of the Review 
Application  
Pg 33 of your own 
FRA  

TBC Written evidence 
required to establish 
responsibilities regarding 
maintenance of the 
common parts of the 
building. Provide 
photographs 
demonstrating the repairs 

Highlighted as a 
Category 1 on your 
FRA 

Box in electrical 
cables on South 
stairwell  

Pg 17-20 of the 
Review Application  

TBC Written evidence 
required to establish 
responsibilities regarding 
maintenance of the 
common parts of the 
building. Provide 
photographs 
demonstrating the repairs 

Cable that was 
running at head 
height now clipped, 
improvement works 
to box in wires have 
been largely 
completed, some 
suspect cables in 
direct contact with 
fluorescent light 

Electrical Test 
and Repairs  

Pg 21 of the Review 
Application and pgs 
10 & 35 of your own 
FRA 

TBC As the electrical testing 
on the whole building is 
required the 
responsibilities need 
setting out. Unsafe 
electrics comprise the 
safety of the building not 
just the premises under 
scrutiny. 
Provide documentary 
records of testing or 
written update regarding 
the time frame for a 
competent person to 
carry out this test   

Electrical testing 
highlighted as 
Category 1 on your 
own FRA 

Ceiling in Gents 
Toilets  

Pg 22 of the Review 
Application. 
Risk Highlighted in the 
documentation was 
imminent risk oof 
collapse which has 
been addressed   

Premises Licence 
Holder  

Photos showing Repairs  Pg 15 of your own 
FRA raises 
compartmentalisation 
issues, while the 
repair deals with the 
risk of collapse it may 
open another 
problem with regards 
to separation.  

Dirt and Grime in 
the toilets  

Pg 22 of the Review 
Application. 
Not directly relevant 
to the Licensing 
objectives  

Premises Licence 
Holder  

Improvements have been 
made with the installation 
of cubicle doors and 
seats. Toilets are still in a 
poor condition, but this is 
more of a policy issue  

 

CCTV inoperable  Pg 24 and 25 of the 
Review Application 
and Appendix D 

Premises Licence 
Holder  

Demonstrate the system 
is compliant with the 
terms of conditions. 
Confirmation following an 
inspection by the Police 
or statement from CCTV 
engineer  

 

Fire Safety  Pg 12 of your own 
FRA. 
Combustible 
materials being 
stored in the open 
cellar area on the 
south side stairwell ( 
1st floor )  

TBC  ( likely to be 
the responsibility  
of Skinny Jimmy’s 
but requires 
confirmation )  

Written evidence 
required to establish 
responsibilities regarding 
maintenance of the 
common parts of the 
building. Provide 
photographs 
demonstrating the repairs 

 

Page 68



Fire Safety  
Operational 
practice in the 
absence of a 
working Fire 
Alarm  

Pg 6 of your own FRA. 
Employment of 4 x 
stewards dedicated to 
Fire Wardens. 

Premises Licence 
Holder 

Evidence that stewards 
have been in place, 
evidence that they have 
had adequate training 
and supervision.  
Invoices /payroll 
Induction paperwork and 
training records  

 

Fire Safety  
Fire doors and 
closures  

Pg 15 of your own 
FRA. 
Self-closer on the fire 
door near the gents’ 
toilets was found to 
be broken on the 
inspection on the 9th 
February 2022 

Premises Licence 
Holder 

Photo showing repair   

Fire Safety  
Notices /plans 
and labels on fire 
doors  

Pg 16 of your own 
FRA  

Premises Licence 
Holder 

Copies or photos showing 
“Action on Fire Notices 
“and stickers on fire 
doors  

 

Fire Safety  
Fire Alarm   

Pg 17 and 35 of your 
own FRA suggests an 
alarm is installed but 
makes the 
recommendation due 
to 
compartmentalisation 
issues that an L2 
system should be 
installed. Pg 35 
indicates the alarm 
issue is a Category 1 
Risk  

TBC-  Clarification is required 
that the alarm will be 
linked to all premises so a 
breakdown of the spec, 
the contractor who will 
be installing and when 
the installation will take 
place  

 

Fire Safety  
Evidence of staff 
training  

Pg 21 of your own 
FRA indicates that the 
SIA staff will be 
specifically training in 
raising the alarm and 
evacuating the 
premises  

Premises Licence 
Holder/ employer  

Evidence of Training 
Records  

 

Fire Safety  
Fire Drills  

Pg 23 of your own 
FRA indicates the 
need for a fire drill 

Premises Licence 
Holder/employer  

Documented evidence of 
a fire drill 

 

Fire Safety  
Fire Alarm 
Clarification  

Pg 23 of your own 
FRA para 26.5 
indicates that a fire 
alarm is in place. This 
point needs 
clarification as our 
understanding is the 
alarm is inoperable? 

FRA Author  E mail sent to FRA Author 
which seeks clarification 
as to why the box 
regarding an alarm is 
ticked as YES  

 

Fie Safety  
Fire Extinguishers  

Pg 23 &pg 26 of your 
own FRA indicates the 
need to maintain fire 
extinguishers and 
suitable locate round 
the premises 
Information on 
locations of the 
extinguishers again to 
be clearly 
communicated to 
staff  

Premises Licence 
Holder/ employer  

Copy Service Certificate  
Install extinguishers in 
suitable locations as there 
seemed to be a large 
amount stored behind 
the DJ booth and not too 
many other in other areas  

 

Page 69



Fire Safety  
Maintenance 
Responsibilities  

Pg 25 of your own 
FRA indicates the 
importance of 
clarifying the 
maintenance 
responsibilities 
particularly in areas 
such as the common 
parts  

TBC Task already highlighted 
in numerous points 
above. Copy of a lease or 
agreement between 
landlord and tenants  

 

 

 

Summary of issues  

24 Points raised  

16 issues highlighted as Red (High Priority) 

8 issues highlighted as Amber ( partially addressed or not safety critical )  

Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Revised Procedure at Licensing Panel Meetings 
 

April 2014 
 
Once the Chair has moved the exemption paragraph the press and public will 
leave the room. 
 
Procedure 
 
Step 1 
 
The Chair will ask those present to introduce themselves and explain the 
procedure to be followed.  
 
Step 2 
 
The Chair will ask the author of the report (or their substitute) to outline the 
proposal and the background to the case.  Their role will be to provide factual 
information to the panel. 
 
The Chair invites members of the panel to ask the presenting officer any 
questions they may have about the application. 
 
Step 3 
 
The Chair invites the applicant or the applicant’s representative to address the 
panel on the merits of their application.  The applicant or the applicant’s 
representative is permitted a maximum of 10 minutes.  In the case of review 
applications all speakers are permitted an equal amount of time.  
 
The Chair asks if any member of the panel/officers present have any 
questions to ask the applicant or the applicant’s representative. 
 
Step 4 
 
The Chair invites any party making representations (including any other 
persons who have been given permission to participate (if any) to present 
their comments(s).  This may include Councillors who have submitted written 
representations on the application within the requisite timescale. 
 
The Chair asks if any members of the panel have any questions to ask any 
party making representations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81

Agenda Annex



Step 5 
 
The Chair offers the applicant or the applicant’s representative the final 
opportunity to address the panel.  The applicant or the applicant’s 
representative is permitted a maximum of 10 minutes.  In the case of a review 
application all speakers will be allowed an equal amount of time.  
 
Step 6 
 
The Chair will ask the parties to withdraw so that the panel can consider its 
determination. In considering its determination, the panel may seek advice 
from its Legal Adviser.  
 
Step 7 
 
The parties will be re-called and informed of the Panel’s decision. 
 

 Applicant to be advised that the decision will be confirmed in writing 
within seven days 
 

 Applicant to be advised of any appeal procedure 
 
All parties will leave swiftly prior to the next case. 

Page 82


	Agenda
	5 Application for the Review of a Premises Licence
	Appendix A (Premises Licence Copy)
	Appendix B (Building Layout)
	Appendix C (Review Application Form)
	Appendix D (Representation Env Health)
	Appendix E (Representation Fire Service 1/3)
	Appendix E (Representation Fire Service 2/3)
	Appendix E (Representation Fire Service 3/3)
	Appendix F (Representation Other Persons)

	 Procedure at Licensing Panel

